NATIONS CCPR

D str.
GENERAL

International covenant
on civil and
CCPR/ C SR 1590

political rights 19 Septenber 1997

ENGLI SH
Oiginal: FRENCH

HUMAN Rl GHTS COW TTEE
Si xtieth session
SUWARY RECORD CF THE 1590t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, CGeneva,
on Tuesday, 15 July 1997, at 3 p.m

Chairman: Ms. CHANET

later: M. BHAGMTI

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT ( conti nued)

Initial report of Slovakia (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenmorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They shoul d be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

CGE. 97-17315 (F)



CCPR/ O SR 1590
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT (agenda item4) ( continued)

Initial report of Slovakia (continued) (CCPR C/81/Add.9; CCPR 60/ Q SLA 4)

1. At the invitation of the Chairnman, the nenbers of the del egation of
Sl ovakia took places at the Committee table

2. The CHAIRVAN invited nenbers of the Committee to ask additiona
guestions concerning the replies given by the Slovak delegation to the first
part of the list of issues (CCPR U 60/Q SLQ 4, paras. 1-12).

3. Ms. EVATT thanked the Sl ovak del egation for the information it had
already given in addition to the information contained in the initial report.
She woul d neverthel ess wel cone clarification of various points which, in her
opi nion, had not been answered. Thus, referring to paragraph 1 of the list,
which related to non-di scrimnation, she asked whether a person who clained to
be a victimof discrimnation by a public body could take | egal action in
order to obtain redress and, if so, what kind of redress that person could
expect to receive, such as reinstatenent in his job or conpensation.

Article 26 of the Covenant inposed an obligation on States parties to prohibit
any formof discrimnation whatsoever, and she would |ike to know how Sl ovaki a
conplied with that obligation. Wre there remedi es which private individuals
coul d exercise in the event of discrimnation, notably in the areas of

enpl oynent and housing? And were there any informal organi zati ons which could
settle disputes, or were private individuals obliged to go to court?

4, I'n connection with question 2, which concerned racist and anti-senitic
activities, she noted that the Sl ovak del egati on had candi dly acknow edged
that nmenbers of the Roma nminority had been victins of acts of violence, that
the police had not always taken the necessary nmeasures to protect that
mnority and that the persons responsible for the viol ence had not al ways been
prosecuted. She asked what positive measures were being taken to renedy that
state of affairs, and whether the Slovak authorities were considering taking
action to conbat inter-ethnic racismand to ensure that educati on progranmes
were initiated in order to change public attitudes in that area

5. In connection with question 3 (non-discrimnation agai nst wonen), she
asked to what extent a woman had the necessary neans to | odge a conplaint in
the event of discrimnation by a State body or an enpl oyer. She understood
that in Slovakia there was great inequality between nen's and wonen's wages
she woul d I'i ke to know whet her wonen suffering fromthat type of

di scrimnation could appeal to an authority and, if so, which one. In
connection with question 4 (violence agai nst wonen), she asked whet her there
was a programme for nonitoring the effects of any measures the authorities

m ght have taken to prevent and punish such violence. On that point the
Comm ttee had been informed of the enactrment in Slovakia of |egislation
concerning illegal abortion; she would |ike to know whether the existence of
that legislation had had any effect on the maternal nortality rate.



CCPR/ T SR 1590
page 3

6. In connection with question 6, she woul d wel cone further information on
nmeasur es whi ch had been taken to ensure that the Sl ovak investigation
departnents were entirely free of political pressure and, in relation to
question 8, she asked why detainees did not have the right to communicate
simultaneously with their relatives and with a | awer and did not have the
right to be examned by a doctor inmmediately. Lastly, on questions 11 and 12,
she asked whether it was true that a Menber of Parliament had been puni shed
for having changed his political allegiance and how the freedom guaranteed by
the Constitution in that area was respect ed.

7. M. YALDEN said he was particularly interested in the questions
concerning the situation of wonen and mnorities, questions on which the

Sl ovak del egati on had not given sufficient details concerning the actua
situation. In that respect, he associated hinself with the questions asked by
Ms. Evatt about equal pay for nen and wormen in the civil service, and woul d
al so like to know how many wonen civil servants there were, what positions
they held, and, if any shortcom ngs existed in that area, what neasures were
bei ng taken by the authorities to renmedy inequalities.

8. In connection with question 5 concerning the rights of persons bel ongi ng
to mnorities, he regretted that the Sl ovak del egati on had been unable to
provi de precise statistics on the proportion of nenbers of ethnic mnorities
enployed in the civil service. He would |ike to know whether that proportion
was sufficient and, if not, what nmeasures the S ovak authorities intended to
take to ensure that all mnorities were equitably represented in the civi
service. In addition, he noted that detailed information was given in
paragraph 98 of the report on schools in which the | anguage of instruction was
Hungari an, but he would like the Sl ovak delegation to further state the
percentage of children of Hungarian origin who were enrolled in school, as a
proportion of the total school -age popul ati on. He al so wondered why the
Language Act which had cone into force in January 1996 stipul ated that schoo
reports should be in Slovak only. He noted that the S ovak report nade no
mention of the possibility, for children belonging to the Roma mnority, to be
educated in their own | anguage. In that connection, it seermed to himthat

Act No. 428/1990 relating to the official |anguage of the Sl ovak Republic,
mentioned in paragraph 96 of the report, contained extrenely restrictive

provi sions as conpared with the legislation enacted in other countries in a
simlar situation. He would wel cone an expl anation by the Sl ovak del egation
of the justification for such an Act.

9. Lastly, concerning question 10 relating to freedom of expression, he
asked whether in that area too the use of their own | anguage by the mnorities
could be restricted in the nedia, and in particular on radio and tel evision

10. M. BHAGMTI thanked the Sl ovak Governnent and del egation for the
efforts they had nade to describe the human rights situation in Sl ovakia and
thereby conduct a fruitful dialogue with the Commttee. He welconed the fact
that one of the first measures taken by Sl ovakia as an i ndependent State had
been to ratify the Covenant and the Optional Protocol. However, for that type
of measure to be truly effective, it was essential to establish an appropriate
institutional mechanismand, in that respect, he would |like to know whet her

Sl ovakia intended to set up a national hunman rights conm ssion to which
citizens coul d have access when they had conplaints to make. Sinilarly, he



CCPR/ T SR 1590
page 4

asked whet her programmes had been initiated in Sl ovakia in order to provide
training and education in the field of human rights in civil society, notably
for Menbers of Parlianent, magistrates, civil servants and, generally
speaking, all persons exercising sone formof authority. He also asked about
the nature of the rel ati onships between the CGovernnent and NGO and whet her
the latter could take action without necessarily being registered with the
governnental authorities.

11. Referring to paragraph 26 of the report, he asked in what cases

assi stance by a defence counsel was not nandatory. In addition, there were
nurrerous reports of violence by skinheads and the police agai nst the Roma
mnority. He asked what measures had been taken by the Government to prevent
that type of violence, whether those responsible had been prosecuted and, if
so, how many had been convicted. Did schools and universities have teaching
programres designed to bring about a change of attitude anong young peopl e
towards the Rona and other mnority groups?

12. Lastly, on the question of freedomof expression in S ovakia, he had
recei ved many reports of restrictions on the freedomof journalists, some of
whom had been prosecuted for criticizing the Governnment or had been forced to
engage in self-censorship. He asked the Sl ovak del egation what the actua
situation was and whet her the Governnent intended to take neasures to renedy
any violations of the right of freedom of expression.

13. Ms. MEDONA QUROGA said that she, too, would wel cone further

i nformati on on several points. Firstly, concerning question 3, which rel ated
to non-di scrimnation agai nst wonen, she noted that the existing |egislation
was fairly conprehensive, but wondered whether positive nmeasures were taken in
practice, notably to ensure that wonen enjoyed equal access to education. She
al so asked what type of education was avail abl e to wonen and whet her the
training opportunities they were given enabl ed themto make genui ne choi ces
and to escape fromtraditionally subordinate jobs. In connection with
question 4, which related to viol ence agai nst wonen, she would |ike to know
the reasons why wormen hesitated to | odge conplaints, as the Sl ovak del egation
had stated. Wre the reasons of a cultural nature or did they relate to the
exi sting machi nery? W men often encountered great difficulty in having access
to the police or taking legal action. Was the Government taking positive
neasures in that area? In addition, what were the provisions that nmade up the
Prevention of Crime Bill, which had been nmentioned in the context of violence
agai nst wonen?

14. I'n connection with question 8, she was surprised that the assistance of
a defence counsel was not mandatory in all cases. That was contrary to the
provisions of article 14 of the Covenant, which established every defendant's
right to defence. She asked whether the provisions applicable in defamation
trials varied according to whether the plaintiff was a senior official, a
civil servant or a private individual. She also inquired whether it was true
that the police had discretionary powers to hold asyl umseekers in custody and
whether the latter had access to the courts. Lastly, she wondered whether the
fact that university courses, appointnents, pronotions, etc. were within the
aegis of the Mnistry of Education did not inpede academ c freedom



CCPR/ T SR 1590
page 5

15. M. BUERGENTHAL said that the Sl ovak report, which mainly contained
qgquotations fromthe Constitution, gave the inpression that that country had
achi eved perfection in the area of human rights. The expl anati ons furni shed
by the Sl ovak del egation had admttedly placed the situation in perspective
but the nmenbers of the Committee woul d have wel coned nore information about
the problens arising in Slovakia, because it was in that way that the dial ogue

between a State party and the Conmittee becane neani ngful. The first question
he would like to put to the del egati on was how a person could | odge a
conpl aint against ill-treatnment during police custody or inprisonnent. D d an

i ndependent conmi ssion or judges regularly inspect prisons? O did prisons
conme under the exclusive conpetence of the Mnistry of Justice, the police or
the prison adm nistration?

16. Secondly, on the question of the Roma, he would |ike to know whet her any
of them had becone statel ess follow ng the separati on of the Czech Republic
and Sl ovaki a and whether there was any discrimnation in relation to the
acquisition of Slovak nationality by Ronma. Wre there many Ronma who di d not
have Sl ovak nationality in S ovakia? |If there were, where did they cone from
and what was their status? In the areas where there were many Roma, was there
an official |ocal organization for |iaison between the police and the Roma
community? He was concerned about that point because of reports of abuses by
the poli ce.

17. Lastly, he would like to know what educational neasures had been taken
by the Sl ovak Governnent to pronote inter-ethnic tolerance, in the context of
the nedia under State control and school curricula. Wat was being done to
ensure that textbooks did not convey anti-Semtic or anti-Roma stereotypes?

18. M. KRETZMER associated hinself with M. K ein's conments on the

i nportant role played by the denocratic institutions for the protection of
human rights and, like Ms. Evatt and other Committee nenbers, noted that the
report dealt mainly with legislation and insufficiently with what was bei ng
done in practice to protect human rights in Sl ovaki a.

19. Hs first question concerned freedom of expression (question 10 of
docunent CCPR/ CJ 60/ Q SLQ 4) and, nmore particularly, the Slovak Council for
Radi o and Tel evi si on Broadcasti ng, which, according to paragraph 76 of the
report, has so far “preserved its independence”. |1t energed fromreports from
ot her sources that the situation was perhaps not as good as one might think:
there was alleged to be interference by the public authorities in television
broadcasts, and journalists whose reports were not favourable to the

Covernnent were censored or even dismssed. |In that connection, could the
del egation enunerate the political parties represented in the above-nenti oned
Counci |, whose nenbers were appointed by Parliament? Did they all belong to

the main party in power or did sone of themformpart of the opposition? Wat
neasures existed to prevent State television frombeing nmani pul ated by the
authorities and to guarantee the equitable presentation of all opinions,

i ncl udi ng those of the opposition? H s second question concerned the
restrictions which had all egedly been inposed by the Governnent on the

aut ononous status of persons of Hungarian origin and Roma, which seemed to be
at variance with article 27 of the Covenant. He would be grateful if the

del egation could clarify matters.



CCPR/ T SR 1590
page 6

20. M. TURK drew attention to the inportance of the normative stage in the
establ i shnment of the human rights protection systemand noted that the report
submtted by Sl ovakia showed that the establishnment of the system had been

| argely conpleted. However, the normative framework was insufficient; mention
nmust al so be made of the application of norns and institutions intended to
protect human rights. 1In that connection, the two areas of particular
interest to himwere the protection of mnorities and the right to take part
in the conduct of public affairs.

21. In connection with mnorities, he wished to raise the question of the
dual system of education, with its nonolingual schools and bilingual schools.
He woul d |ike to know whet her there was a debate on the advantages and

di sadvant ages of the two systens and on the preferences expressed by the
majority population and by mnorities. Ws there an organi zati on which
expressed the views of the mnorities on those questions, an organization

whi ch sinply played an advisory role or an organi zati on enpowered to take

deci sions, as was the case in other countries where nminorities existed? The
bi I'i ngual school systemwas not always favoured by mnorities in Europe today,
as they tended to prefer the nonolingual system The report did not show

whet her that question was being discussed in Slovakia. In addition, there was
an inportant indicator of the actual situation of the schools intended for
mnorities and of the mnority groups thensel ves, and al so of the coexi stence
between the majority and mnority popul ati ons, namely, the nunber of children
attending mnority schools. Had that nunber risen or fallen over the past
five years? Could a conparison be nade between the rate for school attendance
by minority groups in Slovakia today and the rate at the time when Sl ovaki a
had fornmed part of Czechosl ovaki a?

22. Secondly, on the question of the right to take part in the conduct of
public affairs, it was well known that an inportant referendum had been held
in Slovakia at the end of May and that it had had to be annul |l ed because

two unrel ated questions had been put to the population. In a nmemorandum
publ i shed after that annul nent, the Sl ovak Governnent acknow edged that the
ref erendum had evi nced shortcomngs in the current |egal systemand the need
to adopt nmeasures to avert any anbi guous interpretation of |egal provisions.
The CGovernnent further stated that it was dealing seriously with the questions
rai sed by the referendum He would |ike to know what were the shortcomngs in
question and what neasures had been proposed to rectify them The referendum
was in fact a direct neans of expression of the popul ati on as a whol e and was
of particular inportance in the so-called “countries in transition”.

23. M. Bhagwati took the Chair

24. Lord COMLLE said he wished to ask just one question about mnorities
No nmention was nmade in the S ovak report of the appointrment, in 1995, of a
special representative for persons in need of special assistance, notably
menbers of mnority groups such as the Rona. He would |ike to know what
mandat e had been conferred on such a representative, what his duties were,

what funds were at his disposal and what powers had been entrusted to him
Coul d he take nmeasures to rectify certain situations brought to his attention?
Could he transmt certain files with his recomrendati ons or bring those cases
before the courts? Since the office had existed for two years now, it would




CCPR/ U SR 1590
page 7

be interesting to know what the incunbent had been able to do, since that
woul d give sone idea of what was happening in practice in Slovakia now that
the normative process had been conpl et ed.

25. M. PRADO VALLEJO rem nded the Commttee that one of the purposes of the
obligation of periodic reporting to the Commttee was to enable States to
publicize the progress they had achieved and the difficulties they had
encountered in ensuring that the rights and guarantees set out in the Covenant
were a reality for all their citizens. The report of Sl ovakia gave the

i npression that conpliance with the obligations arising fromthe Covenant was
causing no difficulty, but a closer |ook revealed that the situation was quite
different.

26. First, reports fromvarious sources, notably the Council of Europe,
spoke of regular ill-treatnent and torture by the police in the course of
guestioning. Those were said to be common practices, which obviously
constituted a violation of article 7 of the Covenant. The obligation of the
State party in such a situation was to conduct an inquiry into conplaints
relating to such practices, in order to identify the guilty parties and
conpensate the victins. In 1996, there had been 315 conpl aints of that type;
he woul d |ike to know what acti on had been taken and what results achieved.

27. The second probl em concerned di scrimnation agai nst wonen, and in
particul ar wormen nmarried to foreigners; such wonen did not have a right of

per manent residence in Slovakia even if their spouse was |legally present in
the country. If that was true, that constituted a violation of article 3 of
the Covenant and even, indirectly, of article 23, which protected the famly.
Wul d nmeasures be taken to ensure that the provisions in question were brought
into line with the Covenant?

28. And thirdly, there were nmany reports of rules and practices which could
be descri bed as xenophobic, since they inpeded the integration of refugees and
asyl um seekers, within Sl ovak society. For exanple, any person seeking asyl um
who arrived in Sl ovakia could be detained for over 30 days even if he had
committed no offence, sinply in order to enable the authorities to conduct an
inquiry into his case. Such detention was manifestly arbitrary since it was
unjustified. There again, it was essential that the Commttee should be

i nfornmed of neasures taken by the Sl ovak Governnent to give full effect to the
rights and guarantees set out in the Covenant.

29. M. SCHEINN said he wished to take up three questions which had al ready
been rai sed by other nenbers. First, he shared the concern already expressed
about racismand anti-Semtism and considered that the CGovernnent and
political forces nmust commit thenselves to action to conbat raci smby publicly
condeming all acts and mani festations of racially-inspired viol ence.

However, it would seemthat certain political |eaders wi shing to enhance their
popul arity, instead of condeming racial hatred, were making humliating
statenents, particularly against the Rona, which could only heighten
inter-ethnic tension. He would |ike to know whether it was the policy of

the Slovak Governnent to clearly affirmthat political |eaders and
representatives of the State had a duty to publicly condemm racial viol ence.




CCPR/ T SR 1590
page 8

30. The second poi nt concerned the treatnment of mnorities and, nore
particularly, the right to use mnority |languages in dealings with the

adm ni stration and public authorities, in the light of the Oficial Language
Act of 1995, which seened to contain contradictory provisions. Article 1
contained a clause stating that the Act did not regul ate the use of |anguages
by the national mnorities and ethnic groups; article 7, on the other hand
stipulated that the official |anguage was to be used in contacts with the
adm nistration and that the use of the mnority |anguages was subject to
special regulations. However, no special regulations existed to date. There
woul d, therefore, appear to be a lacunae in |legal provisions on that point.
In addition, the 1995 Act, which had entered into force in 1996, established
penalties in the event of its violation. He would Ilike to know how the Act
had been interpreted with regard to the use of their own | anguage by nenbers
of mnorities in dealings and fornalities vis-a-vis the adm nistration.

31. Thirdly, with regard to the treatnment of detainees, the State party's
report and the delegation's replies to the questions raised in the |ist of

i ssues (CCPRIC/60/Q SLO4) related only to arrest and detention in the context
of crimnal prosecution. However, article 9 of the Covenant was broader in
scope, and he would like to know how it was inplenented in S ovakia in
connection with the arrest and detention of foreigners by the police and
detention as a disciplinary neasure in the arny.

32. M. ANDO associated hinself with other nenbers of the Commttee in
wel com ng the del egation of Slovakia. He had read the initial report with
interest and, like others, regretted that it did not contain sufficient

i nformati on about the actual situation in the country.

33. Since the Slovak del egation had itself acknow edged that nenbers of
national mnorities were few and far between in hi gher education, which could
hi nder their chances of finding a job, he asked whether the Covernment was
contenplating particular nmeasures to renedy that situation.

34. Sonre nenbers of the Committee had asked about possi bl e governnent
intervention in the activities of the nmedia. He asked whether efforts were
bei ng made to enabl e the general public to have access to information that
woul d enable it to take decisions in the political sphere and all other
spheres of social activity. Gven Slovakia' s geographical situation, a |large
nunber of foreign radio and tel evision stations could probably be received; it
woul d be useful to know the actual situation, and in particular whether the
maj ority of Slovaks had access to foreign nedia.

35. Lastly, on a quite different matter, he was concerned about the rights
of defence in judicial matters, having noted from paragraph 49 of the report
that the accused nust have a defence counsel as fromthe pre-trial stage

“if the respective crimnal case is punishable by a nmaxi mum sentence of nore
than five years of inprisonment”. However, since crimnal proceedings were

i nvol ved, all suspects and defendants nmust be treated in the sanme way.

Per haps there were not enough | awyers in the country; in any event, he would
like to know the legal justification for that restriction



CCPR/ T SR 1590
page 9

36. The CHAI RVAN proposed that the nmeeting should be suspended to enabl e the
Sl ovak del egation to prepare its replies to the numerous questi ons which had
been asked.

The neeting was suspended at 4.30 p.m and resuned at 4.50 p.m

37. Ms. Chanet resuned the Chair

38. Ms. KRASNCHORSKA (Sl ovakia) thanked the nenmbers of the Commttee for
the interest they had shown in her country's report and assured themthat al
their observations had been duly noted. Her del egation woul d endeavour to
reply to as many questions as possi bl e and had grouped them by subject.

39. M. JEZOVICA (Sl ovakia), answering the question concerning the
possibility of a nodification of the conpetence of the Constitutional Court,

said that, as far as he knew, there were no plans for such action. |In order
to do so, in fact, Parliament woul d have to anmend the Constitution by adopting
a constitutional law by a three-fifths nmajority. It could therefore be seen

that the power to nodify the conmpetence of the Constitutional Court did not
lie with the Governnent.

40. One nenber of the Commttee had asked whether the legality of the

el ection of menbers of the Denocratic Union party to the National Council had
been or mght be challenged. The answer was clearly that legally el ected
Menbers of Parliament retained their status, which there was no question of
nodi f yi ng.

41. M. GREXA (Slovakia), taking up the question of the referendum of

May 1997 concerning Slovakia's entry into NATO, said it was true that the
ref erendum had rai sed conpl ex | egal problens and that its annul ment by the
Ref er endum Conmi ssi on had created a difficult situation. The Constitutiona
Court was currently exam ning the questi on whether the Mnistry of the
Interior had acted legally, which at |east proved the effectiveness of the
Sl ovak supervisory institutions. The Covernment had undertaken to study the
consequences of the annul ment of the referendum in order to prevent a
recurrence of the situation. It would therefore exam ne the |egislation
gover ni ng referendum procedures and possi bl e anendnents woul d probably be
debated in Parlianment. For the tine being, therefore, there was no specific
neasure to report, but the intention to settle the question by parlianentary
nmeans had been asserted.

42. M. PROCHACKA (Slovakia) said he had noted the Conmttee's interest in
the situation of mnorities and would in the first place deal with the
qguestion of education, the essential nmeans of ensuring the full participation

of menbers of mnorities in civil life. The preservation of the identity of
the Hungarian mnority was guaranteed above all by the existence of a
nmonol i ngual school systemfor “Hungarians”. During the school year 1966/ 67

77 per cent of children of Hungarian origin had been enrolled in the

286 kindergartens intended for such children; 82 per cent of “Hungarian”
children enrolled in primary schools had attended 264 “Hungarian” prinary
school s; and 80 per cent of “Hungarian” secondary pupils had attended 11
secondary school s; and 63 per cent of “Hungarian” students taking vocati ona
courses had attended 5 secondary technical schools and 3 paranedi cal school s.



CCPR/ T SR 1590
page 10

There were al so special schools for physically or nentally disabled children
of Hungarian origin. The figures for 1994/95 showed that the rate of
attendance at “Hungarian” school s had renai ned unchanged.

43. As to “Hungarian” pupils' know edge of the S ovak | anguage, it was true
that the spread of education in the nother tongue of the mnority nmeant that
“Hungari an” pupils did not know Sl ovak sufficiently well to follow the Sl ovak
school programme. That fact, together with insufficient interest in

uni versity studies, neant that the “Hungarians” enrolled in or graduating from
uni versity were | ess nunerous than not only Slovaks but al so the nenbers of

other national mnorities. It was therefore nmore difficult for “Hungari ans”
to find a skilled job, and that situation was creating barriers which isolated
the Hungarian mnority fromthe rest of Slovak society. |In order to renedy

the situation, the Mnistry of Education had taken measures to inprove the
teaching of Slovak to mnorities and specialists had been asked to propose

i nnovati ve nethods. The Mnistry had al so i naugurated a bilingual education
systemin which certain subjects (e.g. social sciences and natural sciences)
were taught in Slovak in “Hungarian” schools; children whose parents so wi shed
attended the rel evant classes. “Hungarian” children now had the possibility
of choosing between education in a Sl ovak school given entirely in Sl ovak,
education given solely in Hungarian and bilingual education. For the schoo
year 1995/96, the bilingual systemhad functioned in 30 ki ndergartens,

1 primary school and 3 secondary school s.

44, As to the right to information, it should be noted that the Radio Act
and the Tel evision Act guaranteed the pronotion of mnority cultures by neans
of express provisions. That |egislation thus provided that radio and
tel evi sion shoul d reserve broadcasting time for national mnorities.
Specifically, S ovak radio reserved 35 broadcasting hours a week for
programres in Hungarian and tel evision had a weekly 30-m nute news nmagazi ne
programre in Hungarian, the |ast week of each nonth being reserved for
broadcasts for the Ruthenians and the Wkrainians. Private radio stations also
br oadcast nunerous programres in Hungari an.

45, On the question of the right to use one's own | anguage, he acknow edged
that the repeal of the Oficial Language Act had created a kind of |ega
vacuum However, the right, for mnorities, to speak their own | anguage and
use it in official communications was guaranteed by the Constitution, and it
was exercised in practice, even in the absence of an express |egal provision.
In any event, there were plans to fill that |egal vacuum it was only a
question of tinme.

46. M. JEZONICA (Slovakia), replying to a question about the case of
asyl um seekers who had reportedly been held in police custody for 40 days,
said that he had no know edge of that case. It was very probably a basel ess
runour since asylumseekers in S ovakia were not placed in detention. The
only peopl e who could be placed in detention were those who had been refused
refugee status, and only on certain conditions (if the person concerned coul d
not be expell ed because of prosecution proceedi ngs agai nst hi mor because he
was awaiting a travel docurent).

47. Replying to the questions concerning Slovak nationality and famly
reunification for foreigners, he said the | aw provided that a foreigner



CCPR/ J SR 1590
page 11

married to a Slovak wonan was entitled to a pernanent residence permt, which
could al so be granted on humanitarian grounds in other cases. As to the
acquisition of nationality, it should be borne in mnd that every citizen of
the Slovak region of the former Czechosl ovaki a had automatically becone a
citizen of the new Slovak State. GCenerally speaking, any national of the
former Czechosl ovaki a could acquire Slovak nationality by sinply naking a
decl aration that he wished to do so. Those provisions were ainmed at |limting
the adverse effects which could not be avoi ded when one State broke up and
anot her State was born fromits ashes.

48. As to the question of the treatnment of detainees and, in particular, the
case of persons held in police custody who had reportedly been handcuffed to a
radi ator, he said that such treatnent was obvi ously i nhunan and constituted a
flagrant breach of the law. The Police Act specified the conditions in which
police officers could handcuff a suspect (if he had di sobeyed an order, if he
had caused property damage or if it was thought that he mght try to escape).
In addition, an information canpai gn ainmed at giving the police guidance on
action to be taken in such circunstances was currently under way.

49. Ms. LAMPEROVA (Slovakia), replying to a question concerning the
Prevention of Gime Bill, said that prevention was better than punishnent.
Thus, the Slovak legislature, in conjunction with the Crinme Prevention

Conmi ssion set up by the CGovernnent, had been working on that bill for severa
years. In Slovakia, there had recently been an increase in previously unknown
of fences, such as car theft, organized crine and noney |aundering. The bill
was thus constantly having to be updated and did not fully reflect the actua
situation. It had been subnmtted to the Legislative Council of the
Governnent. Since she did not know its exact content, she was unable to give
further details; she neverthel ess assured the Commttee that the Sl ovak
authorities would nake a point of communicating the text of the | aw as soon as
it had been enacted, together with any other information the Conmmttee m ght

wi sh to receive.

50. A question had been asked about the neaning of what she had called the
“hi dden crinme” whose victins were wonen. Such crime could be said to be
hidden in two respects: firstly, because a woman who had been raped m ght not
wish to report the rape for reasons of conscience, famly or religious
reasons, etc.; and secondly, there were a nunber of |acunae in |egislation on
the matter. For exanple, a rape victimwas required to repeat the account of
the attack many tines - before the persons conducting the inquiry, the
exam ni ng nagi strate, etc., which constituted an ordeal and a situation that
shoul d be renedied through | egislation. One of the conm ssions responsible
for the codification of crimnal |aw was dealing with the question of rape
victinms, and she hoped that its work would be fruitful.

51. On the question of requests by detainees, the foll owi ng procedure was
followed: the request was addressed to the governor of the prison concerned,
but could be communi cated to himby any staff nenber. The request was first
exam ned by the governor, before being forwarded to the prison board, which
was conposed of the procurator responsible for the supervision of prisons, a
magi strate and other senior prison officials and nmet tw ce a year.

52. M. GREXA (Slovakia) considered that the oral questions which had been
asked about the nmandatory defence of accused persons stemred froma
m sunder st andi ng, since the right to be assisted by counsel was guaranteed to



CCPR/ J SR 1590
page 12

every person charged with an of fence or placed in detention. The |aw provided
for a nunmber of cases in which the defence of the accused was nandatory, and
in that connection he drew attention to what was stated in paragraph 49 of the
report (CCPR/C/81/Add.9). |If a person charged with a mnor offence and
allowed to remain free did not choose a defence counsel, he was not assigned
one automatically. GCenerally speaking, the provisions on that question in no
way jeopardized the right of the accused to be assisted by a defence counsel.

53. One nenber of the Conmttee had asked whether, if the accused did not
wi sh to be defended by a | awer, the State was automatically required to
appoi nt one for him That question was currently under discussion in

Sl ovaki a, and his del egati on woul d be happy to hear the Commttee's opinion
whi ch woul d be duly taken into account.

54. The CHAI RVAN sai d she understood that a defence counsel was appoi nt ed
automatically when the mninumpenalty for the offence was five years

i mprisonnent. But at what point did the defence counsel intervene in the
pre-trial proceedings, namely between arrest and placing in detention? In
France, for exanple, the lawer intervened after 20 hours of police custody,
and a bill enabling himto intervene inmmediately after the arrest had been
submtted. What was the situation in S ovakia?

55. Ms. LAMPEROVA (Slovakia) said that, in accordance with the |law, any
person under arrest could contact a | awer or a menber of his famly as soon
as he had been infornmed of the charge against him

56. M. YALDEN thanked the Sl ovak del egation for the details it had provided
on the question of mnorities, but noted that it had given no reply concerning
the Oficial Language Bill and its effects on the mnorities' right to use
their |anguage in official commnications. The delegation had inplied that

that bill would be enacted shortly, but that was contradicted by information
originating fromNG. In addition, a representative of the Mnistry of
Qulture had apparently stated that there were no plans to enact new

legislation in that area. Wat was the current situation with regard to the

| anguage rights of mnorities? And what |egislative neasures were envi saged?

57. M. BHAGMTI , reverting to the question of the defence of the accused,
said he would |ike to know whether, if a suspect could not afford to enploy a
def ence counsel, the State appointed one inmmedi ately after the arrest or only
during the subsequent stages.

58. Ms. MEDINA QU ROGA observed that a nunber of her questions had not yet
been answered, in particular the questions concerning defamati on of a police
officer or other official, academ c freedom and neasures whi ch m ght be taken
to inprove the status of wonen in the areas of education and enpl oyrent.

59. Ms. KRASNCHORSKA (Sl ovakia) assured the Conmttee that her del egation
woul d endeavour to reply as precisely and fully as possible, during the next
neeting devoted to consideration of the initial report, to all the outstandi ng
qguesti ons.

The neeting rose at 5.55 p.m




